
     T O W N  O F  W I L L S B O R O  
PLANNING BOARD 

 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 28TH, 2015 AT 7:00PM AT THE TOWN HALL 

 
In Attendance: Robert deMello, William Bardeen, Robert Powell, Dean Caveney-Chairman, Wayne 
Feeley, Sharon Garvey, James Liebeck, Greg LaDuke, Esq.,   
 
Public – Stephen McKenna, Code Enforcement Officer Doug Rock, Gary Doty, Barbara Doty, Jim 
Morse 
 
Mr. Caveney, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 7:00pm.  
 
MINUTES 
  
Mr. Caveney called for approval of  the March 2015 board meeting minutes. Mr. deMello 
moved to approve and Mr. Bardeen seconded. All voted in favor and the motion carried.  
 
Corrections:  
 
2014 should be changed to 2015 under minute motion of  approval.  
 
Page 2 – Mr. Bardeen noted that Long Pond is part of  CATs. Mr. Bardeen noted that he was 
indicated as having voted on the case and he did not vote due to recusal.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
2482 - Stephen McKenna – Special Use Permit – Sand Gravel Mining 
 
Public hearing opened.  
 
Claire LaPine – Ms. LaPine asked if the permit has or has not been granted. Mr. Bardeen noted that 
they have not seen the final approval as of yet. Greg LaDuke, Esq noted that there is a 30 day 
waiting period. He noted that the DEC has recently sent a letter regarding finances and that that 
means that approval is moving forward. Ms. LaPine asked about the SEQRA and if she could have a 
copy of the form. Ms. LaPine asked about the APA’s involvement. She noted that Class A projects 
are typically reviewed by the agency. Mr. Rock clarified that the project is within the Hamlet. Ms. 
LaPine expressed her concerns about the noise, dust and traffic. She noted that she cannot say at 
this point in time that she is in favor of the project. 
 
Gary Doty – Mr. Doty asked if this is the only time that the Planning Board will be taking 
comments from the public. Mr. Caveney noted that it would be as it is the advertised public hearing. 
Mr. Doty noted that he has additional documentation that he would like to submit to the board. Mr. 
Doty explained that the paper that he provided the board is an enumeration of their concerns 
regarding the project. He noted that he would like the document to be a part of the minute record. 



 – 2 – May 21, 2015  

 

Mr. Bardeen asked if all of the suggestions in the letter were made known to Mr. McKenna. Mr. 
Doty stated that he has not made them aware to Mr. McKenna before this point.  
 
Stephen McKenna – Mr. McKenna noted that he collected over 300 signatures of individuals in 
favor of this project. He noted that he downsized the project to do the minimum that he possibly 
can. Mr. McKenna noted that he is not trying to bother any of the neighbors, but that he purchased 
the property and feels that he should be able to use it as he would like to utilize it.  
 
Greg LaDuke – Mr. LaDuke addressed the concerns of the Doty’s. He noted that he will not be 
drilling or blasting, that he will be using pre-existing gravel and utilizing it. Mr. LaDuke referred to 
the Zoning Ordinance. Mr. deMello noted that it has been stated in the past that there will be 
crushing equipment utilized. Mr. Buckley noted that there will be some crushing, but no drilling and 
blasting. Mr. deMello noted that he spoke with Joseph Barbedo, NYS DEC who noted that there 
would be drilling. Mr. Buckley noted that that was placed in the original application, but that that 
was removed from the original application. Mr. deMello noted that his understanding is that drilling 
would still take place, but that blasting had been removed. Mr. Buckley noted that drilling does not 
take place without blasting that it would be a mechanical rock hammer. Mr. LaDuke continued to 
address the Doty’s concerns. Discussion took place regarding the APA’s determination on the 
project.  
 
Chairman Caveney asked that the public speak one at a time. Mr. Bardeen asked that individuals be 
civil.  
 
Lorilee Sheehan – Ms. Sheehan noted that she does not believe that there is one person that has a 
commercial or residential connection to Mr. McKenna’s property. Ms. Sheehan noted that her 
children’s property is adjacent to the property. She noted that she has a commercial and residential 
connection to the property that she owned the property and it was a mining operation. Mr. Doty 
asked if Ms. Sheehan would be doing business with Mr. McKenna. Mr. LaDuke noted that he does 
not feel that the board should allow the neighbors to cross-examine the applicant.  
 
Claire LaPine/Mark Buckley – Ms. LaPine asked about the noise and how loud it would be for the 
general public. Mr. Buckley noted that noise would be at 64 decibels which is comparable to the 
conversation in the room.  
 
Steve Callahan – Mr. Callahan expressed his concern with the rock crushing and how often it would 
be taking place. Mr. McKenna noted that it would be approximately 2 weeks out of the summer.  
 
Bill Miller – Mr. Miller noted that Willsboro is known for mining that it is something more that the 
community should emphasize here.  
 
Jim Morse – Mr. Morse asked why the drilling and blasting was pulled. He noted that it is less noise 
then a continued mechanical rock hammer 8 hours a day. Mr. Caveney noted that they avoided it 
because it moves it out of sand and gravel extraction and into mining.  
 
Greg LaDuke – Mr. LaDuke noted that the Town will not have to police the mine that the DEC 
would be the ones to enforce regulations.  
 



 – 3 – May 21, 2015  

 

Mr. deMello noted that from his point of view there is a lot of information that the Planning Board 
does not have yet.  
 
Public hearing closed.  
 
2473 – Eira Manning – 2-lot Minor Subdivision  
 
Public hearing opened.  
 
No comment.  
 
Public hearing closed.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
2482 - Stephen McKenna – Special Use Permit – Sand Gravel Mining 
 
Discussion – Mr. Caveney noted that the main concern is whether it is mining or gravel. Mr. 
deMello noted that the concerns are noise, dust, traffic, remediation, and property values. Mr. 
deMello noted that the Zoning Ordinance requires a reclamation plan to be submitted to the 
Planning Board. He referred to Section 5.34 of the Ordinance. Mr. deMello noted that he is being a 
stickler because by doing so they prevent the possibility of an Article 78. Mr. McKenna noted that 
the board has a copy of the plan that was submitted to DEC.  
 
Mr. deMello stated that his understanding is that the project appears to be much less complex than 
mineral extraction. He noted that he spoke with the DEC regarding classification. Mr. deMello 
discussed his findings and noted that the DEC described what Mr. McKenna has as poorly 
consolidated, being between consolidated and unconsolidated. Mr. deMello noted that what Mr. 
McKenna is proposing does not require buildings, that it will have temporary equipment, but that it 
will fall under the classification of sand and gravel versus mining. He noted that if there is any 
question it is the Zoning Board of Appeals that has the authority to interpret those things. Mr. 
Powell asked about the application submitted to DEC and referred to it being a mining permit. Mr. 
deMello noted that sand and gravel falls under the general “mining” classification for DEC.  
 
Mr. deMello discussed noise further and discussed general guidelines for noise 65dba day time and 
55dba at night. Mr. deMello suggested that the board stipulate that noise remain 65dba during the 
day time 8-5 and 55dba at night time. Mr. deMello noted that the DEC noted that noise is 
something that is easily mitigated. He noted that putting noise limits at the residential property 
boundaries provides comfort to the residents.  
 
The board referred to Sections, 5.32, 5.34, and Appendix C of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Section 5.21 – Mr. deMello questioned the traffic amount. He noted that the board may put a limit 
on the traffic per week.  
 
Mr. deMello discussed noise, dust, and runoff – he noted that noise will be addressed and that 
runoff is not an issue. Mr. Buckley noted that on days that are hot and dry the applicant will need to 



 – 4 – May 21, 2015  

 

have a water truck on site to prevent dust. Mr. Powell asked whether water would be routinely used. 
Mr. Buckley stated that no processed water will be used.  
 
Mr. deMello noted that even though residential properties have increased around the site, the 
applicant’s property is a permitted special use.  
 
Section 5.32 - Mr. deMello noted that buildings are not an issue and the DEC has looked at this, 
noting that drainage is not an issue.  
 
Mr. deMello discussed the stipulation that nothing can be excavated within 200 feet of  a property 
line.  
 
Mr. deMello noted that the ordinance requires that as the process moves along that the previously 
disturbed sections be reclaimed.  
 
Mr. deMello noted that trees over 100 feet must be replaced and discussed suitable screening or 
fencing.  
 
Section 5.34 – Mr. deMello asked that the board receive the reclamation plan.  
 
Appendix C – Mr. deMello noted that it refers to soils and topography. He noted that the objective 
is to minimize topographic alterations. Mr. deMello noted that the DEC permit requires that the 
applicant remain 5 feet above the water table. Mr. deMello asked if the dust will come from the 
traffic or the sand and gravel mining. Mr. Buckley noted that it would be more from the trucks, but 
that they will be watering the roads.  
 
Mr. deMello noted that any process will need to be 200 feet from the wetland. Mr. deMello noted 
that it is very likely that the board will require plantings if there have been any trees that have been 
cut down to minimize the visual impact.  
 
Mr. deMello noted that the mining site does not extend into the Land Conservation-River corridor.  
 
Mr. deMello noted that with 20 trucks estimated that it will have a minimal impact. Mr. deMello 
referred to storm water management planning. Mr. Buckley noted that a storm water management 
plan is part of the permit application.  
 
Mr. deMello noted that a business sign will need to be in compliance with the ordinance.  
 
Mr. deMello noted that before he votes he would like to review the material. He noted that he 
would like to table the case until the next meeting. Mr. deMello noted that the board needs to 
formulate the requirements that they would impose.  
 
Planning Board Special Use Permit Requirements –  
 
Noise – Monday through Friday 8AM to 5PM (65dba at any residential property line) from any 
operations, not more than 55dba any other time.  
 



 – 5 – May 21, 2015  

 

Traffic – No more than 90 vehicles in and out of the site per week. Watering must be used to 
prevent dust from the traffic.  
 
Screening – The board noted that if trees have been cut down within 100 feet of a residential 
property that they be replaced. Mr. McKenna noted that he and Mr. Buckley have discussed creating 
a berm which would be much more effective than trees. Mr. deMello noted that either a berm or 
plantings must be utilized, stating that if the plantings do not sufficiently cut the noise that a berm 
may need to be created.  
 
Blasting – No blasting will be permitted by the Town.  
 
Reclamation – The board stated that as required by the ordinance any disturbed property must be 
reclaimed with an effective cover crop, within one year after it is no longer used.  
 
Hours of Operation - Mr. Powell stated that he is not sure that operation on Saturdays. He asked 
how the board felt about that fact. He noted that he would not mind seeing that the mine not be 
operated on Saturdays because of the residential proximity. Mr. Bardeen and Mr. deMello noted that 
they do not have a problem with Saturday operation. The board concurred. 
 
After Hours Gate - Mr. deMello asked if there will be any dangerous machinery on site that should 
be locked up after hours. The board stated that they would prefer that a gate be placed to prevent 
tampering with machinery. 
 
Boundary Requirements - Mr. deMello noted that no mining shall take placed within 200 feet from a 
residential boundary or 300 feet from any road.  
 
Setback Markings - Setbacks should be permanently delineated for future workers reference.  
 
Mr. deMello motioned to grant the Special Use permit subject to the conditions and subject 
to the DEC permit actually being issued. Mr. Liebeck seconded. All voted in favor and the 
motion carried.  
 
2473 – Eira Manning – 2-lot Minor Subdivision  
 
Discussion – Mr. deMello noted that this lot has been subdivided quite a bit, but it is on the road, 
there is no problem with utilities or road access therefore he does not find a difficulty with this 
subdivision.  
 
Mr. Bardeen motioned to approve and Mr. Liebeck seconded. All voted in favor and the 
motion carried.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONCERNS AND INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 



 – 6 – May 21, 2015  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:16pm. Mr. Liebeck motioned to approve and Mr. deMello 
seconded. All voted in favor and the motion carried.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Ashley Ryan Blanchard, Secretary 
Planning Board 


